


 GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Tuesday, July 17, 2018 - 7:00 p.m. 
Takiff Center - Community Hall  

Consistent with the requirements of the Illinois Compiled Statutes 5 ILCS 120/1 
through 120/6 (Open Meetings Act), notices of this meeting were posted. 

Meeting Location:  Takiff Center, 999 Green Bay Road, Glencoe, IL 60022 

A G E N D A 
I. Call to Order   

II. Roll Call 
III. Consent Agenda Items 

A. Minutes of June 19, 2018 Finance Committee of the Whole Meeting 
B. Minutes of June 19, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 
C. Approval of the Cooperative Planning, Use, and Maintenance of Facilities and Parks 

Policy 
D. Approval of the Quality and Professionally Trained Staff Policy 
E. Approval of the Use of Park District Property and Equipment Policy 
F. Approval of the Volunteer Policy 
G. Approval of the Bills 

IV. Matters from the Public 
V. Financial Report 

VI. Staff Reports 
A.  Business 
B. Recreation and Facilities 
C. Parks and Maintenance 
D. Marketing and Communications 
E. Safety and Wellness Committee 

VII. Executive Director Report 
VIII. Action Items 

A. Approval of Commissioner Service Resolution No. 885 – Steven H. Gaines 
B. Approval of Resolution No. 886: A Resolution for the Commitment of $300,000 of the 

Corporate Fund Balance and $700,000 of the Recreation Fund Balance for Future 
Capital Projects of the Glencoe Park District 

C. Approval of the Annual Treasurer’s Report 
D. Approval to Cancel the August Regular Board Meeting 
E. Approval of Energy Contract 
F. Approval of the Updated Safety Manual 

IX. Other Business 
X. Executive Session 

A. Vacancy in Public Office 5ILCS 120/2(a)(3) to discuss potential candidates to fill a 
commissioner vacancy 

XI. Approval of Appointment to fill Glencoe Park District Board Commissioner Vacancy 
XII. Adjournment 

The Glencoe Park District is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Individuals with disabilities who plan to 
attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have 
questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or facilities, are asked to contact the Park District at 847-835-3030. Executive Director Email: 
lsheppard@glencoeparkdistrict.com  



III. Consent Agenda Items
Section 2.06(b) of the Open Meetings Act allows a public entity to approve

minutes either within 30 days after the relevant meeting OR at the public body’s
second subsequent regular meeting, whichever is LATER. For consistency, all

minutes will be approved at the subsequent Regular Board Meeting.

Items on the Consent Agenda are representative of routine actions by the Board
of Directors or staff. Members of the Board of Park Commissioners are invited
and encouraged to call the Executive Director prior to the meeting with any

questions about consent agenda items.

The Board President asks for a motion to adopt the consent agenda items.
However, if any member of the Board wishes to discuss any item on the consent
agenda, for any reason whatsoever, he or she may ask that the item be removed

from the consent agenda and the President will change the agenda per the
request.

The Executive Director recommends approval of the consent agenda.

Glencoe Park District
July 2018 Board Meeting



DRAFT

MINUTES OF JUNE 19, 2018 FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 
GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 

The meeting was called to order at 6:35pm and roll was called. 

Commissioners present:  Staff present: 
Dudley Onderdonk, Chair/Treasurer Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Lisa Brooks, President  Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/HR
Stefanie Boron, Vice President  Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
Steve Gaines, Commissioner Bobby Collins, Director of Recreation/Facilities 
Josh Lutton, Commissioner  Erin Maassen, Supt. of Marketing/Comm. 
      Jenny Runkel, Administrative Assistant 

Members of the Public in Attendance Who Signed In or Spoke:  Ron Amen of 
Lauterbach and Amen 

Matters from the Public:  There was no one wishing to address the committee.

Discussion of FY2017/2018 Annual Audit Report, Management Letter, Other:  Chair 
Onderdonk introduced Ron Amen, managing partner of Lauterbach and Amen, the 
District’s audit firm. Mr. Amen presented the FY2017/2018 Annual Audit Report and 
Management Letter. Board discussion with Mr. Amen, the Board, and Director 
Mensinger ensued. 

Chair Onderdonk directed staff, based on discussion of the committee, to move the 
FY2017/18 Annual Audit forward for approval at the June regular board meeting. 

Discussion on Reserve a Portion of Current Fund Balance for Future Capital:  Director 
Mensinger recommended to the Board that the Park District transfer monies exceeding 
fund balance guideline levels in both Recreation and Corporate Funds. A sample 
resolution was provided to the Board for review with possible action to be taken at the 
July regular board meeting. The amounts recommended to the Board to transfer to 
Fund 69 are $300,000 from the Corporate Fund and $700,000 from the Recreation 
Fund to fund future Master Plan or capital projects. Discussion ensued. 

Wages of part-time, seasonal staff were reviewed, in response to a question of what 
could impact future fund balance transfers to Fund 69. 

Chair Onderdonk directed staff, based on discussion of the committee, to move 
reserving a portion of current fund balance for future capital forward for approval at the 
July 17 regular board meeting. 

Discussion of Preliminary 2017 Final Tax Extension:  Per the preliminary final 2017 tax 
information given by the county, total EAV is expected to increase 2.24%. There has 
been $20 million in total EAV growth, of which $10 million is old growth and $10 million 
is new growth. Current bonds were reviewed. 



2

Other Business: There was no other business. 

Adjourn: Commissioner Onderdonk moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:55pm. 
Commissioner Boron seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

                   
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 



DRAFT

MINUTES OF JUNE 19, 2018 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 

The meeting was called to order at 7:03pm and roll was called. 

Commissioners present:  Staff present: 
Lisa Brooks, President Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Stefanie Boron, Vice President Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/HR
Dudley Onderdonk, Treasurer Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
Steve Gaines, Commissioner Bobby Collins, Director of Recreation/Facilities 
Josh Lutton, Commissioner Erin Maassen, Supt. of Marketing/Comm. 
      Jenny Runkel, Administrative Assistant 
      
Members of the public in attendance who signed in or spoke:  Dan Dorfman, David 
Duckler, Laurie Gross, Judd Kohn, John McManus, Emma Palatnik, Bart Schneider 

Consent Agenda:  A motion was made by Commissioner Gaines to approve the consent 
agenda items as presented including Minutes of the May 15, 2018 Regular Board 
Meeting, June 5, 2018 Personnel and Policy Committee Meeting, June 5, 2018 Special 
Projects and Facilities Committee Meeting, Approval of the Bills, Administrative Release 
Policy, Commissioner Privileges Policy, Ethics and Conduct Policy, Comprehensive 
Assessment Policy, Comprehensive Year-Round Recreation Programs Policy, 
Continuing Education Opportunities Policy, Environmental Policy, Soccer Goal Safety 
and Education Policy, Recreation Planning, Development, and Evaluation Policy, Toxic 
Substances Disclosures to Employees Act, and acceptance of the Environmental Report 
Card . Commissioner Onderdonk seconded the motion. Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk, Brooks 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: None 
  The motion passed. 

Matters from the Public: The Glencoe Caucus Village nominee committee co-chair Bart 
Schneider announced the goals of the caucus and that candidate applications are due 
by August 15 at 5:00pm. Answers to questions can be found at glencoecaucus.org as 
well as an email for further questions.

Financial Report:  Director of Finance/Human Resources Mensinger stated we are three 
months into the new fiscal year. An amazing opening weekend at the beach showed 
Memorial Day weekend far exceeding anything seen in her 20 years of experience. The 
beach department is up almost $29,000. The recreation department is looking good. 
Daycare is even with last year; the expansion coming in September will be interesting. 
Overall, nothing is jumping out; financials are consistent with previous years. 

Staff Reports: Staff shared additional information not included in their Board Reports.



2

Director Mensinger is finalizing the audit and starting the next budget with staff earlier 
this year. 

Director Collins stated there were over 788 residents at the beach during opening 
weekend. Camp started this week and is going smoothly so far. We are seeing a drop in 
Action Quest with 51 of Action Quest age choosing other Park District specialty camps. 
Aquatics Camp is full with wait lists in almost every section. Sailing Camp is almost full. 
The STEM Drone Camp has done really well. We are looking to change Action Quest to 
a more modular approach with specialty weeks built into the specialty camps for more 
variety.

Director Leiner highlighted that it has been a wet June so far. Residents are concerned 
with park flooding; the District will be looking into how park flooding is affecting the 
community as the Capital Planning cycle continues. Takiff bioswale projects are 
wrapping up with soil delivered followed by planting and seeding in the next couple 
weeks. Vernon playground equipment is standing and Old Elm is starting at the end of 
the week. Staff has been busy with plantings done, tennis windscreens installed, the 
beach kept clean, and additional cleaning at Takiff and Watts from camp. Bees outgrew 
existing hives, so the hives are now expanded.

Executive Director Sheppard shared that if we have standing water in parks for more 
than 3-4 days, pellets are applied (same as used at Botanic Gardens and zoos) to 
mitigate mosquitoes. 

Park replacement timeline and camp numbers were reviewed. 

Manager Maassen imparted that we are sending out emailed to “Put Some Play in Your 
Day” each week and is finding success. The Gold Medal video is out. 

Executive Director Report:  Executive Director Sheppard shared that the bluff study is 
almost complete and going to committee in July if not August. 

Director Leiner gave an update of the unexpected improvement of the sanitary sewer 
line at the boathouse. Porta-potties are available during repair. The timeline to complete 
is 1-2 weeks. 

Fourth of July event planning is ongoing with the  same activities as in the past. 

Jessica Stockl was promoted to early childhood manager and we are very close to 
hiring the early childhood supervisor. 

The Special Projects and Facilities Committee meeting on Tuesday, July 10 will include 
capital projects discussion and a possible park tour. 

There will be an August 7 Special Projects and Facilities Committee meeting, but the 
August Regular Board meeting can be cancelled. 



3

Staff are working on Distinguished Accreditation as well as the PDRMA Loss Control 
Review.

Action Items: 

Approval of Fiscal Year 2017/18 Annual Audit:  A motion was made by Commissioner 
Gaines to approve the Fiscal Year 2017/18 Annual Audit as presented. Commissioner
Onderdonk seconded the motion. No discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk, Brooks 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: None 
  The motion passed. 

Approval of Ordinance No. 884: An Ordinance Adopting Prevailing Wage Rates to be 
Paid to Laborers, Mechanics, and Other Workers Performing Construction of Public 
Works in the Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois:  A motion was made by 
Commissioner Gaines to approve Ordinance No. 884 as presented. Commissioner
Boron seconded the motion. No discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk, Brooks 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: None 
  The motion passed. 

Approval of Strategic Plan:  A motion was made by Commissioner Gaines to approve 
the Strategic Plan 2018-2023 as presented. Commissioner Onderdonk seconded the 
motion. Comment was made that we have not completed measurement on the results 
yet. Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk, Brooks 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: None 
  The motion passed. 

Approval of License Agreement with Congregation Hakafa:  A motion was made by 
Commissioner Gaines to approve the license agreement with Congregation Hakafa as 
presented. Commissioner Boron seconded the motion. In response to a commissioner 
question, the contract is new but they have been a recurring lessee and good partners 
for the District. Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk, Brooks 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: None 
  The motion passed. 

Approval of Staff and Board to Attend NRPA Annual Congress:  A motion was made by 
Commissioner Gaines to approve Glencoe Park District staff to attend NRPA Annual 
Congress with expenses not to exceed $7,000 as presented. Commissioner Boron 



4

seconded the motion. NRPA Congress is being held in Indianapolis, so staff will take the 
Park District van. Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk, Brooks 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: None 
  The motion passed. 

A motion was made by Commissioner Gaines to approve Glencoe Park District 
Commissioners Onderdonk, Boron, and Brooks to attend NRPA Annual Congress with 
expenses not to exceed $1,000 as presented. Commissioner Boron seconded the 
motion. Commissioners would pay for hotel and travel expenses with the District paying 
for registration. The staff dinner paid for by the District would be Monday night. Three 
commissioners agreed to attend Monday night and Tuesday. Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk, Brooks 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: None 
  The motion passed. 

Approval of Master Plan Conceptual Design Agreement for Old Green Bay Linear 
Parks:  John McManus of Altamanu, Inc. gave a presentation on Old Green Bay Road 
Linear Parks Master Plan from Maple Hill to Park Avenue attached to these minutes 
describing the framework of the project. Ala carte plans, budget, and donations were 
reviewed. Monies have been set aside for community and committee review meetings. 
A possible OSLAD grant may become available.

Comments included the challenge that the cost of the path itself may be more than the 
budget allows, OSLAD grants will be a great opportunity, the grant deadline is unknown, 
and Altamanu will be writing the grant.

A motion was made by Commissioner Gaines to approve the Altamanu, Inc. agreement 
for the master planning services relating to the Old Green Bay Road linear park system 
for $64,556.99 plus expenses as presented. Commissioner Lutton seconded the 
motion. No further discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk, Brooks 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: None 
  The motion passed. 

Approval of Takiff Parking and Plaza Replacement Bids:  A motion was made by 
Commissioner Lutton to approve the lowest responsible Takiff parking and plaza 
replacement bidder, Abbey Paving and Sealcoating Inc. of Aurora, IL for a total of 
$412,582.41 as presented. Commissioner Gaines seconded the motion. 

Director Leiner shared that 20 firms picked up the bid, three firms attended the meeting, 
and one firm put in a bid. Because of bid practices, the one bidder did not know if there 
would be other bids, so the best price is what was reflected. Abbey Paving is respected. 



5

We set tight bid specs to start right after camp with penalties for disruption. That is why 
we believe the other bidders backed out. Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk, Brooks 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: None 
  The motion passed. 

Approval of Takiff Painting and Carpentry Bids:  A motion was made by Commissioner 
Lutton to approve the lowest responsible Takiff painting and carpentry bidder, Action 1 
Construction of Chicago, IL for Base Bid A including alternates 3, 4, 5 with contingency 
for a total of $118,000 as presented. Commissioner Boron seconded the motion.

Director Leiner reviewed history including the FY2016/17 assessment of roofs at which 
time it was determined that roofs needed to be replaced. The bid came back higher than 
expected, so the painting and carpentry included in that bid was put on hold until this 
fiscal year for a budget of $145,000 discussed at the February Finance Committee of 
the Whole meeting. The base bids are the total removal of all the molding, installation of 
new molding, and painting. The alternates are taking the existing molding, stripping of 
rotted pieces; replace those pieces, and painting. Phase two slated for next year is 
alternate bid 2 which will be re-bid next fiscal year. Action 1 has great references. This 
project will start almost immediately, to be finished prior the parking lot project. This 
project will not affect camps or programs. Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk, Brooks 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: None 
  The motion passed. 

Other Business: There was no other business. 

Adjourn: Commissioner Gaines moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:55pm. Commissioner 
Onderdonk seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

                   
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 



Old Green Bay Road Linear Parks Master Plan
June 19th, 2018



Delighted to be Here!!!
Photo Courtesy Friends of the Green Bay Trail



Delighted to be Here!!!

The Village of Glencoe began in the 1830s with an inn for 
stagecoaches at what is now South Avenue

Old Green Bay and Glencoe History Intertwined



Opportunity to Create Layers of Glencoe History
Origin of the word prairie
1675–85; < French: flower meadow < Vulgar

Anglo Settlers called them the “Barrens”
because they were not cultivated

1839 Dearborn Park Chicago Formal Design

1860 Chicago opened 60-acre Lake Park

American Inferiority Complex: There were no Native Plants in the Park. 
Every plant was imported from France or England

Lake Front Park is Glencoe’s oldest park,  dating from the Village’s incorporation in 1869

The taste swung from formal to naturalesque with Victorians liking nature to perform

American Confidence:  Jens Jensen in Glencoe in the second decade of the 20th Century

Today Glencoe supports multiple styles with interest growing in Native Landscape
How would you represent that?  A narrative?



Donor Opportunities Example: Labyrinth Mills Park 



Park Enhancements and Donor Opportunities



Boulders and Sculptural Chairs with Petroglyphs

Also Gardens. Gateways, Planted Areas



Green Bay Linear Parks Master Plan

But we are looking at so much more



Existing Site Aerial



Proposed Project Boundaries

Maple Hill Road

Park Avenue



Scale .53 Miles Approx.  2,796 Feet 

Maple Hill Road

Park Avenue



Five Separate Parks and Six Road Crossings

Maple Hill Road

Park Avenue



More Than Seven and a Half Football Fields



5 Separate Parks, each with its own distinct character, 
viewsheds, settings, and spatial relationships.

Six road crossings, a playground, Veterans Memorial, 
various gardens, historic artifacts and an urban forest with 
many mature trees.

Potential issues within each park vary but drainage, 
current  use and potential use, and relationship to 
residences are some of the most obvious prior to analysis 
of existing conditions. 

What’s Involved?



Old Green Bay and Glencoe History Intertwined

But we have little Information 



We wish to get to this level of detail



To do so we need Real Information and Plans



Example of Rendering Packages for Specific Projects 

Plan, Rendering and 
Opinion of Probable Costs





Proposed to the Board of Park Commissioners Cooperative Planning, Use, and Maintenance of
7/17/2018 Facilities and Parks Policy Page 1 of 1

Glencoe Park District
Cooperative Planning, Use, and Maintenance of Facilities and Parks Policy

Whenever feasible, advantageous to the District, and legally permissible, staff shall investigate
cooperative planning, development, maintenance, and purchase of equipment, facilities and
program with other agencies both governmental and private. In order to assure that the
residents of Glencoe Park District are provided with the types of facilities and parks that they
desire, Glencoe Park District staff and Board of Park Commissioners will continue to actively
pursue joint ventures with other community groups, businesses, and municipal agencies. These
ventures should be designed to make the best possible use of financial resources, staff, and
property so that all participating in the agreement, including the residents, benefit. Contracts
authorizing the park district to participate in cooperative venture require the review and
approval of the Board of Park Commissioners.

Coordination of Recreational Programs and Activities
The Park District will continually strive to seek cooperative recreational programming efforts
whenever appropriate as well as coordinate program planning with community groups in order
to avoid duplication of programs and services for its residents. Staff will be responsible for
cooperative planning, which would benefit the start or continuation of program and services.

PDF Version: insert hyperlink to document following approval
Word Version: insert hyperlink to document following approval



DA 4.2.1a

Add to Personnel Policy Manual page 4…

Proposed to the Board of Park Commissioners Quality and Professionally Trained Staff Policy
7/17/2018 Page 1 of 1

Glencoe Park District
Quality and Professionally Trained Staff Policy

The Board strives to hire quality and professionally trained staff and recognizes that the
Park District competes with private as well as other public agencies for quality employees.
Thus, it is the policy of the Board to maintain, within reasonable financial constraints, a
suitable salary, benefit for the employees, and appropriate training and certifications. It is
the desire of the Board to have certified and professionally trained staff and will emphasize
this desire in recruitment and training of its management staff.

PDF Version: insert hyperlink to document following approval
Word Version: insert hyperlink to document following approval



Proposed to the Board of Park Commissioners Use of Park District Property and Equipment Policy
07/17/2018 Page 1 of 1

Glencoe Park District
Use of Park District Property and Equipment Policy

No employee, elected official or member of the public may use Park District property for
personal use without proper authorization. No Park District property may be released for
personal use without the prior written approval of the Department Head that is responsible for
the equipment or property. The Executive Director can only approve personal use of Park
District vehicles.

For the purpose of this section, Park District property is defined as buildings, vehicles, facilities,
grounds, tools, implements, building materials, electronic equipment, recreation and rental
equipment, and all other property owned, leased, or in the possession of the Park District.
Because safety and liability is of chief concern, it is expected that Park District property that is
assigned, authorized, or permitted to be used will be operated in a fashion consistent with the
Park District's established safety rules and regulations. Instructions on safe and proper use will
be provided upon request. In addition, the use of some Park District property may require
permits, waivers, and releases. The employee will be responsible for the full cost of repair or
replacement of Park District property, in the sole discretion of the Park District that is damaged
or lost while it is in the employee's care and custody.

Permission to use any park district facility or park after normal operating hours must be granted
in writing by the Executive Director. Employee rental discounts are listed on the Employee
Benefit Sheets (see Director of Finance/HR office for most updated copy).

Negligence in the care and use of Park District property may be considered grounds for
discipline, up to and including discharge.

The park district may at its discretion provide space for affiliate groups to store their
equipment. It is highly recommended that the affiliate group insure their property for a
minimum of its replacement value.

PDF Version: insert hyperlink to document following approval
Word Version: insert hyperlink to document following approval



Proposed to the Board of Park Commissioners Volunteer Policy
07/17/2018 Page 1 of 2

Glencoe Park District
Volunteer Policy

The Glencoe Park District Board of Park Commissioners and staff recognize that volunteers are
essential to the success of our programs and special events. All volunteers of the Glencoe Park
District must receive a volunteer manual and complete the following information before any
hours of work are accomplished. The information required is:

Volunteer information form
Criminal background check on individuals 18 years and over in youth sensitive positions
A job description for the appropriate task(s)
Glencoe Park District Safety Policy Statement
Glencoe Park District General Safety Rules

Volunteers must be trained before assuming any duties. Volunteer information forms will be
kept on file by the program manager. The program manager will compile a tabulation of hours
completed by each volunteer along with the total volunteer hours. The program manager will
provide in their program report the number of volunteers and volunteer hours.

Volunteer Recruitment, Training, and Supervision

Recruitment
Recruit age appropriate volunteers for events and programs
High school students and scouts for special events
High school students for day care programs
Adults for special events, trips, and other adult programs
Adults for coaching team sports
Volunteers should fill out volunteer applications and when appropriate complete a criminal
background check form
Evaluate the results

Training the new volunteers
At beginning of event or program, review with volunteers what the event is about, their
responsibilities, and duties
If applicable, review food handling safety procedures
Review safety procedures and safety poster

How to supervise volunteers
Know the strengths and weakness of each volunteer
Staff for weaknesses
Build on each person’s strengths
Have regular communication
Give recognition based upon the person’s needs



Proposed to the Board of Park Commissioners Volunteer Policy
07/17/2018 Page 2 of 2

Offer support when needed
Ask questions

Common mistakes made when supervising volunteers
The cold shoulder
Never make a volunteer feel that you do not care
Make them feel welcome at all times
Turning volunteers loose without any orientation
Volunteers need to know what is expected of them
Exerting too much control
You want your volunteers to be able to be themselves and adapt to their environment
Give them guidelines to follow, but allow them to adapt to the volunteer’s personality
Loading volunteers with too much work
Not recognizing work well done, this can be frustrating
Recognizing good work can re energize volunteers
Not involving volunteers in decision making processes
Get their input when making big decisions

PDF Version: insert hyperlink to document following approval
Word Version: insert hyperlink to document following approval



































V. Financial Report

Glencoe Park District
July 2018 Board Meeting







Glencoe Park District
Monthly Financial Analysis
June 2018

As of As of As of
6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018

Recreation Department - Programs
Revenues 1,896,310 1,876,778 1,988,644
Wages (178,844) (144,720) (156,557)
Contractual (644,942) (682,034) (633,789)
Supplies (36,829) (32,819) (35,375)
     Net Surplus 1,035,695 1,017,205 1,162,923

Day Care Department
Revenue 320,280 309,282 372,809
Expense (232,351) (225,706) (281,986)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 87,929 83,576 90,823

Fitness Department
Revenue n/a n/a 15,508
Expense n/a n/a (13,746)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) n/a n/a 1,762

Beach Department
Revenue 135,469 140,464 138,344
Expense (99,980) (93,969) (85,184)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 35,489 46,495 53,160

Boating Department
Revenue 68,752 85,244 80,981
Expense (39,840) (49,803) (64,875)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 28,912 35,441 16,106

Beach/Boating Dept Total 64,401 81,936 69,266

Watts Department
Revenue 781 2,113 881
Expenses (37,972) (43,193) (47,960)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (37,191) (41,080) (47,079)

G & A (Administration)
Revenue (excl G&A Tfr) 9,925 11,495 10,805
Expense (349,450) (387,963) (386,340)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (339,525) (376,468) (375,535)

Parks Department
Revenue 779 755 4,039
Expense (344,002) (322,980) (327,678)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (343,223) (322,225) (323,639)

Rec-Admin/Takiff  Department
Revenues 585,651 613,659 630,531
Expenses (798,644) (1,674,015) (1,070,994)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (212,993) (1,060,356) (440,463)



VI. Staff Reports

Glencoe Park District
July 2018 Board Meeting



Glencoe Park District 
Business Department Report 

July 2018 

Fall Program Registration 
The fall brochure is expected to be delivered to residents during the week of July 9. Residents will be 
able to register online starting at 7:00am on a first come-first serve basis on Wednesday, August 1. Non-
residents will be able to begin registering for programs on August 6. Preliminary planning meetings with 
staff will be held two weeks prior to registration. 

FY 2017/18 Annual Audit Report Follow-up 
Since the Board officially accepted the FY2017/18 Annual Audit Report at last month’s board meeting, 
the document has been posted to the District’s website, was filed with the Cook County Clerk’s Office, 
and was uploaded to both the Cook County Treasurer’s website and the EMMA website (for continuing 
disclosure on our outstanding bond issues).

FY 2017/18 Annual Treasurer’s Report 
The Annual Treasurer’s Report is no longer required to be published – just a notice of publication 
stating that the Annual Audit Report is available for review. However, the Annual Treasurer’s Report 
must still be completed and approved. It is included in your packet and will be posted to the District’s 
website after the board’s approval. 

2017 Final Tax Extension 
Preliminary final draft information for the 2017 Real Estate Taxes that was distributed to the Board for 
the Finance Committee of the Whole meeting last month has now been finalized by the County. Second 
installment tax bills were mailed and are due August 1. 

3-Year Master Plan Project 
Staff has assisted in the updating of financial information that will be presented to the Board for the
July 10 committee meeting on future master plan projects. 

Distinguished Agency Accreditation 
Staff has assisted the Executive Director in gathering and organizing information required for the 
Finance and Business Operations section and the Human Resources section of the Accreditation 
Standards in preparation for the next meeting with our mentor. 

PDRMA Loss Control Review 
In preparation for the August 21 meeting for the Administrative Section of the 2018 PDRMA Loss 
Control Review, staff has been gathering and organizing documentation. 

Salary Survey Update/Review 
Staff has been in contact with Amanda Wethington, our rep from Korn Ferry/Hay Group, to begin the 
process of the update and review of the District’s hiring/salary ranges which was originally conducted in 
2014.

Submitted by: 
Carol Mensinger 
Director of Finance/Human Resources 



Glencoe Park District 
Recreation and Facilities Department 

July 2018 

Recreation Department Report: Bobby Collins 
The recreation department continues to provide a wide variety of exceptional experiences this 
summer. There is no better example of this than the Glencoe Fourth of July Celebration which 
provides a full day of fun for residents of all ages.  

The beach and recreation teams have worked diligently on preparing for the PDRMA Loss 
Control Review, which examines in detail, operating processes, safety and training. The beach 
audit result was 99.5%, which is extremely strong.  We will know the recreation section shortly.

Camps continue on as they reach the midpoint of the eight week season. Campers have been 
enjoying time onsite with theme days such as “gold rush day” and “carnival day” while also 
going on field trips to places like Great America and Wheeling Waterpark.  

I would also like to welcome Amanda Giacomino, the newest member of the recreation 
leadership team, on her new role as the Early Childhood Program Supervisor. Amanda has a 
broad early childhood background including being director designee and lead infant and 3’s 
teacher. She brings with her a passion for her profession as well as a strong background as a 
teacher and early childhood administrator.  

Beach: Matt Walker 
We are approaching the halfway point of our 2018 beach season. The weather in June was very 
inconsistent, resulting in some low attendance days as well as some high traffic days.  We 
experienced 6 water closures due to water quality related to the significant rain in June. 

Our popular aquatics and sailing camps have been very successful with waitlists for almost every 
session of each camp. The high enrollment is very encouraging and staff will continue to look for 
ways to enhance the programs.   

As of July 1, beach financials look healthy. With the unpredictable weather, daily admissions 
will continue to fluctuate. Summer boat storage is slightly lower than this time last year with the 
loss of sand spots on the boating beach. The majority of boat storage revenue has been collected 
and the boating beach is at capacity for sand spots. The Glencoe Boat Club will mark its 51st 
anniversary this past weekend as they kicked off the regatta season with the first of four races 
during the month of July.

Revenue
as of 7/1 2018 2017 Variance 

Summer Boat Storage  $77,356  $81,154  $(3,798)
Trellis Rentals  $6,520  $7,191  $(671)
Beach Passes  $50,834  $50,465  $369
Sailing Camp  $30,495  $11,906  $18,588 

Aquatics Camp  $33,968  $13,051  $20,917
Total Revenue  $199,173  $163,767  $35,405 



Early Childhood: Jessica Stockl 
Early childhood’s summer is off to a wonderful start with our camp enrollment in line with 
expectations. The Teddy Bears were absorbed into Pandas this summer. Campers are enjoying 
their first few weeks of exploring Glencoe on trips to local parks and the beach. We have 
multiple campers that have requested to extend the weeks their parents signed up for because of 
how much fun they are having.  

Camp Enrollment 
as of 7/2

2018 2017 

Teddy Bears 0 18 
Panda Bears 40 25 
Koala Bears 45 45 

Kinder Korner 70 64 
Total 155 152 

ELC enrollment for fall is currently at 51 participants. We are receiving a few more inquiries 
from our camp participants and hope to add more children to our two’s class. 

Children’s Circle’s summer enrollment is at 55 which is higher than normal, with only three 
children taking off for the summer. The Jellyfish room has one new child, the Frog room has 
two, the Starfish room has three, and the Beluga room has two children all starting on July 2.
The Jellyfish and Frog classrooms have enjoyed using the new walking path around Reinsdorf 
Field while the Starfish and Beluga classrooms have been exploring Glencoe by visiting Public 
Safety and playing at Friends Park. The fall enrollment is continuing to grow with families 
moving off of the waitlist and receiving new inquiries. 

ELC Enrollment 
as of 7/2

2018-2019 2017-2018 

2’s classes 11 19 
3’s classes 18 19 
4’s classes 22 42 

Total 51 80 

Children’s Circle Enrollment 2018-2019 2017-2018 
Jellyfish 9 9 

Frogs 9 15 
Turtles (NEW) 14 0 

Starfish 11 18 
Dolphins (NEW) 14 0 

Belugas 16 21 
Total 73 63 



Athletics, Sports and Teen Camp: Chris Pietrini 
Action Quest has had a great start to the summer, despite the poor weather.  Unfortunately, due 
to storms we had to cancel a trip to Barefoot Bay, one of the camper’s favorites. We were able to 
book a last minute trip to a bowling alley. So far, some of the camper’s most memorable 
experiences include The Zone Parkour at River Trails Park District and our trip to Great America 
followed by the overnight. The overnighter is a great time for staff to bond as well, so it was nice 
having it earlier than usual this year. 

The Counselor in Training program has gone very well.  Jon Pranian, our camp director, has 
been very involved in preparing participants to be future counselors for the District. CIT’s 
receive pre-camp training, are given weekly points of emphasis and bi-weekly performance 
reviews. They also take time for fun. They accompany the camps they work at on field trips, and 
also go on one of their own field trips each 4 week session. 

Arts and Youth: Stephani Briskman 
Our Summer’s Beginning Camp ran the week leading up to our regular camp season. We went 
on field trips to places like Pinstripes Bowling in Northbrook, Laser Quest in Arlington Heights, 
and Nickel City in Northbrook, had a Hawaiian day and ended the week with a trip to Glencoe 
Beach. We had 50 participants each day for this program. 

Sun Fun and Camp Adventure are entering their halfway point of camp! The campers have 
participated in field trips such as Wheeling Water Park, Mobile Room Escape, Brunswick Bowl 
and Glencoe Beach.  

Sun Fun Enrollment 
as of 7/5/18 8 Week 4 Week 2 Week

2018 97 50 42 
2017 99 38 39 

Camp Adventure Enrollment 
as of 6/8/18 8 Week 4 Week 2 Week

2018 28 35 29 
2017 30 33 31 

Special Events & Active Adults: Liz Visteen 
The Fourth of July was another successful day of festivities. Although it was a warm day it did 
not prevent the families of Glencoe to come out to enjoy the activities. The day’s activities 
included:
8:00am Rotary Fun Run at Metra Station 
10:00am Preschool Games at Kalk Park 
11:00am Mini Golf at Kalk Park 
12:00pm Glencoe’s Got Talent 
2:00pm Parade 
6:00pm Trolley Pick up & Drop-Off begins and Food Vendors at Lakefront Park 
6:30pm Live Music: Spoken Four at Lakefront Park 
9:00pm Fireworks at Lakefront Park 

CIT 
as of 7/1 2018 2017 

Total 42 42 

Action Quest 
as of 7/1 2018 2017 

Total 48 77 



Summer Special Event Attendance 2018 2017 
June 21- Park-N-Play: Summer Solstice Cancelled 6 kids; 3 adults 
June 22 – Tots-N-Tunes at Library 150 ~ 160 
June 26 – Tots-N-Tunes at Kalk (moved to Takiff) ~200 ~ 200 
June 28 – Park-N-Play: Paw Patrol ~65 (adults & kids) Not offered 
July 4 – Fun Run ~ 200 ~ 200 
July 4 – Preschool Games ~ 350 (adults & kids) ~ 400 (adults & kids) 
July 4 – Mini Golf ~ 200 (adults & kids) ~ 200 (adults & kids) 
July 4 – Glencoe’s Got Talent 12 acts 13 acts 
July 4 – Fireworks ~ 2000 ~ 2000 
July 5 – Park-N-Play at Aster Park Cancelled Not offered 
July 6 – Tots-N-Tunes at Library ~150 ~ 150 
July 7 – Cardboard Regatta 7 teams 5 teams 

Upcoming Spring events:  
July 15 – Disc Golf Tournament  July 24 – Tots-N-Tunes at Kalk Park 
July 19 – Park-N-Play at Kalk Park  July 26 – Park-N-Play at Shelton Park 
July 21 – Meet the Machines   July 27 – Beach Camp Out 

Takiff, Fitness, & Watts: Adam Wohl  
Facility rentals in 2018 continue to trend consistently slightly above 2017. Switching to facility 
rentals versus birthday party packages has helped streamline the process. 

Takiff Center Rental 
as of 6/1 2018 2017 

Facility Rentals $35,358 $30,473 

Glencoe Fitness 
The Glencoe Fitness Center continues to grow in membership. We are currently offering a 
Summer Student Membership for the 3-month summer break. It costs $99 for a 3-month 
membership for residents. We have sold 28 student memberships for 2018. We have surpassed 
our goal of 25 sold.

Submitted by: 
Bobby Collins, Director of Recreation and Facilities 

Age Range # in Range 
14-19 30 
20-29 12 
30-39 23 
40-49 30 
50-59 32 
60-69 34 
70-79 32 
80-89 5 
90+ 0 

Average Age 48.61 

Fitness Membership 
as of 7/1/18 Fees

214 $55,058 



Glencoe Park District 
Parks & Facilities Maintenance Report 

July 2018 

Administrative 
I have continued to work with Altamanu relating to the playground replacements, Takiff Parking 
projects and Old Green Bay Road linear park master plan. I am coordinating with ACG to begin 
the paint and carpentry project at the Takiff Center.  

Grounds/Horticulture
The landscape crews have been out in full force completing plantings throughout the District.
Lakefront Park was heavily groomed in preparation for the Fourth of July festivities. Trees were 
trimmed, landscaping trimmed, and beds weeded. 

Weeding has continued to be a top priority in July, with weeding work done out front of Takiff, 
ELC Playground, Friends Park, Milton Park, Shelton Park, West Park, and Berlin Park. 

Staff has needed to water flower beds throughout Glencoe with the hot weather.

On a sad note, one of our queen bees has become ill. Due to her lack of production she will be 
replaced to keep the hive healthy. It’s a bug’s life… 

Staff has continued to treat standing water for mosquitos throughout the park system. 

Parks Maintenance & Construction 

Staff is working to refresh all the playground safety chips throughout the District as well as 
adding new play sand to each sand box. 

Park Maintenance crews performed the demolition of the Old Elm playground. 

The bleachers at North Field have now been pressure washed and staff made multiple repairs to 
the irrigation system. Berlin Field and Kalk Park were fertilized.

Per state law backflow preventer inspections have taken place throughout the entire Park District. 

Tennis court resurfacing will take place this month; additionally the tennis backboard wall for 
Shelton is being manufactured. 

Staff continues to groom baseball fields. We are balancing the project load against completing 
routine tasks such as turf repairs, emptying trash, and weed control. 

Facilities 
Facilities staff has begun to prepare for the Takiff Center annual shutdown in August. Scheduled 
maintenance includes gym floor refinishing, carpet cleaning, floor replacement, painting, and 
heavy cleaning. In addition, the fire alarm will be fully tested and inspected. 



Repairs have been made to the roof above the gym and to the HVAC unit servicing the I.T. room 
in the knuckle.

A section of the sanitary sewer line was replaced at the boathouse and the bathrooms have 
reopened.

Shared Services 
The Village of Glencoe has continued to support the Park District by performing maintenance on 
vehicles. All mowers received preventative maintenance this month, boathouse ATV was 
repaired and repairs were made to two fleet trucks 

We have continued to cut all Village of Glencoe grass per the shared services agreement. 
Staff worked well together to manage Fourth of July festivities throughout Glencoe. 

Submitted by: 
Chris Leiner, Director of Parks & Maintenance 



Glencoe Park District
Marketing/Communications Report 

July 2018 

Social Media/Email
We ended the month of June with 32,657 Facebook impressions (in 2017, we ended the month 
with 45,325 impressions). We now have 1482 followers on Facebook, 819 followers on Twitter 
and 963 followers on Instagram. Glencoe Beach has 1,779 followers on Facebook. We also sent 
out several targeted email blasts: 

Date
Sent Campaign Name Total

Sent
Open
Rate

Click
Through

Rate
Link

6/1 Play in your week 1 3016 31.9% 9.8% https://conta.cc/2HcyLMn
6/6 Boater issue 114 73% 0% https://conta.cc/2HtkIC2
6/8 Play in your week 2 5040 29.6% 15.5% https://conta.cc/2MckJ0P
6/11 Summer Art Classes 335 42.3% 13.5% https://conta.cc/2JzLzOB
6/14 Camp Lunch Ordering 291 62.4% 40.9% https://conta.cc/2JLrg10
6/15 Play in your week 3 4927 37% 8.3% https://conta.cc/2JPpUC8
6/18 Beach Guest Passes 228 57.4% 0% https://conta.cc/2JT0Udr
6/22 Play in your week 4 5123 22.6% 6.9% https://conta.cc/2K2Jnzs
6/22 Play in your week 4 correction 5122 35.6% 14.2% https://conta.cc/2IiTZIP
6/27 July 4th Activities 5115 40.7% 3.6% https://conta.cc/2Iy9E77
6/29 Play in your week 5 5115 29.3% 9.4% https://conta.cc/2IxX6Nr

Fourth of July 
To promote our Independence Day Celebration, I sent out email blasts to the general public. 
Information was also included in Inside Glencoe, flyers distributed to special event participants 
and campers, as well as posted in the Village kiosks, on the Village website, on the Village mini-
kiosks, and in Park District facilities. Banners were posted at Lakefront Park, the Halfway 
House, and the ramp/street entrances in advance of the event. I also worked with the Winnetka 
Park District to create an alternate location map for beachgoers. Throughout the day, video 
updates were posted to the Park District’s Facebook, Instagram, and Snapchat stories, as well as 
our Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram pages. We also designed and purchased a custom geo-
Snapchat filter, with the Park District’s logo, which was available for the public to use from 
Lakefront Park to Vernon Avenue, between Hazel and Park Avenues, from 9:00am to 11:00pm. 

Fall Brochure 
I worked closely with staff to finalize the fall brochure using ProofHQ and InDesign. The fall 
brochure will be mailed to residents the week of July 9. Real-Time Registration for fall programs 
will start at 7:00am on Wednesday, August 1. 



Art Publicity 
We are working on creating a brand for our adult art program. This summer, we created a tri-fold 
brochure, website images, and social media icons to promote the brand. We also created an email 
campaign to link to current classes. We plan to continue this effort in the fall, including sending 
out an adult art program direct mail piece.  

Glencoe Beach 
I am working with staff to promote the beach. Promotion methods include information in the 
summer sampler mailing, information spring brochure, graphics on our website and TVs, internal 
posters, and flyers. Amenity information is now included in our weekly email blasts. We 
purchased an ad in the summer issue of Keep Growing, the Chicago Botanic Garden’s member 
publication to promote the beach’s proximity to the gardens. We also purchased promoted posts 
on Facebook and Instagram, as well as devoted increased time to sharing user images on 
Instagram. 

Submitted by: 
Erin Maassen, Superintendent of Marketing and Communications 



SAFETY COMMITTEE AND WELLNESS MEETING 
Agenda and Minutes 

Wednesday, June 29, 2018 / 11:00 a.m.
(Please Note: Items in red print require action) 

1. Call to order at 10:45 a.m. 

Roll Call:  Present: Lisa Sheppard, Carol Mensinger, Chris Leiner, Jessica Stockl, Liz Stowick, Adam Wohl, 
Liz Visteen, and Lorise Weil.  Absent: Bobby Collins and Matt Walker.     

2.   Review of the Minutes:  The Safety and Wellness Committee Meeting Minutes from April 18, 2018 were 
reviewed and accepted.     

3. Accident/Incident Review:  Carol reported on the accident/incident reports for the past two months.  There 
were (10) participant accident/incident reports and (1) employee injury.   

4. Open Claims:   The underground storage tank Property Loss claim is still open.  Also, there is (1) Vehicle 
claim open, and (3) Worker’s Comp claims open.   

5. Carry Over Items:  

a) Loss Control Review:  Since PDRMA needs to see our agency’s entire training plan, Chris will
distribute a “training matrix.”   Each manager will need to populate the matrix for their department, i.e., 
for every part-time and full-time staff member.  In addition, a subcommittee will be formed to 
analyze the matrix training program.   

b) Our art instructors will be displaying private art around the building, in accordance to the agreement 
that was signed.   

c) Chris asked if Jenny could please provide some sample formats on Certificates of Insurance at our 
next meeting, scheduled for July 18, 2018.   

d) Liz S. asked if Jenny could also provide us with information on Record Retention at our next meeting. 
e) Lorise stated that GJK asked if we could possibly incorporate “Fire Stop Signs” during one of our 

future fire drills.  Chris stated that they will definitely take a look at this in the fall, i.e., when Public 
Safety comes out to assist us on determining multiple evacuation points.   

f) Lorise asked about the Safety Data Sheet binders, and provided Chris with A-Z indexes for the 
multiple areas that will be storing Safety Data Sheets, e.g., Parks, Beach, Watts, and the Early 
Childhood wing.  Chris will be installing Safety Data Sheet stations sometime this year. 

   
6. Certificate of Insurance Information:  Please continue to submit any needed Certificate of Insurance 

information, as requested.  The COIs should be updated on a monthly basis.   

7. New Items:   

a) Lisa noted that we have staff training scheduled this August, so if there are any items that need to be 
added to the agenda, we should let her know.   

b) Liz Visteen asked if volunteers can complete an Accident/Incident Report.  It was noted that a 
volunteer should never complete an Accident/Incident report; instead, they should call their supervisor 
and have them complete the form.   

c) Lorise asked if we have a no photo sign by the EC playground?  Jessica noted that in lieu of a sign, 
the teachers are vigilant about making sure that no random photos are being taken of children.   

8. Wellness Initiatives: 

a) Liz Stowick said there will be a “Walking Club,” or “Walking Initiative” starting soon.
b) GPD received a $250 check for entering the Hazard Hunter Contest. 
c) Liz Stowick also mentioned that PDRMA offers grant money for the implementation of physical and 

mental wellness initiatives, with a deadline of October 2018.  We are required to keep track of the 
results.   

        Adjourn:  11:45 a.m.   

The next Safety and Wellness Committee Meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, July 18, 2018 at 11:00 a.m.



VII. Executive Director Report

Glencoe Park District
July 2018 Board Meeting



Glencoe Park District 
Executive Director’s Report 

July 2018 

Fourth of July Celebration!
Our team did an outstanding job working seamlessly to provide a wonderful community event 
for the Fourth of July Celebration! The fireworks were easily viewed throughout Lakefront Park, 
where we estimated over 2,100 individuals in attendance. There were also many private parties 
and boats on the lake who also viewed the fireworks. Many compliments were communicated 
throughout the day. We did have some, mostly nonresidents; visit to use the beach on Saturday. 
Those who did stop by were appreciative of the option to use Winnetka beaches and the map 
provided. Erin did a great job of using social media to market the event all day long. 

Fourth of July Line Up      Participation Numbers 
8:00am Fun Run      250 participants 
10:00am  Preschool Games at Kalk Park   400 participants 
11:00am Mini Golf Tournament    200 adults and kids 
Noon Glencoe’s Got Talent at Kalk Park Gazebo  12 acts 
4:30pm  Concessions at the Park 
6:30pm Entertainment: Spoken Four 
9:15pm Fireworks (fired off the Beach)   They were outstanding!  

In addition to the Park District sponsored activities, the village staff organized and hosted the 
Glencoe parade at 2:00pm and provided logistical, traffic, and safety support in addition to 
contributing to the cost of the fireworks. 

The only logistical problem is that food trucks were invited to come and confirmed, yet backed 
out a week before the event. We had two food vendors, but they ran out of food early.  

Construction Update 
Takiff Parking Phase 1 
This week workers from Clauss Brothers continued installing the plant material in the new 
bio-swales around the athletic field at Takiff. The project is close to being closed out. We are 
working thru final punch list items. 
Old Elm, Vernon, Woodlawn Playground Replacements
Vernon - Hacienda have neared completion of the sidewalks and curbs at the Vernon 
playground. This week they focused on installing the water lines for the drinking fountain 
and connecting the park drainage system to the Village storm drains. 
Old Elm - Demolition was completed last week and workers have begun the process of 
installing the playground equipment this week. 
Woodlawn - I have continued to work with the contractor to approve the submittals and shop 
drawings for the decking. 
Takiff Parking Phase 2 
We have completed the contract and moving forward with reviewing submittals and project 
planning.



2

Takiff Paint/Carpentry 
We have completed the contract and expect work to begin in the next 10 days. 
Boat House Sanitary Sewer 
Workers from Demuth completed the repairs on that section of line on Monday morning. The 
bathrooms are again working at the boathouse. 

Fall Program Registration 
The recreation, marketing, and registration teams have been busy preparing for fall. The fall 
brochure is expected to be delivered to residents on or around July 9. Residents will be able to 
register online starting at 7:00am on a first come-first serve basis on Wednesday, August 1. Non-
residents will be able to begin registering for programs on August 6. The recreation and facility 
team have been very creative in their offerings. 

Programs
Summer programs and facilities are going very well. Bobby and his team have hired exceptional 
staff that have been trained very well for the important jobs that they are hired to do.

The Beach had their PDRMA Loss control review and scored 99.5 out of a possible 100!  

The Glencoe Beach lifeguards had a surprise audit of their skills done by Jeff Ellis and 
Associates, which is known for its International Lifeguard Training Program. The staff that were 
audited did an excellent job. Some items of note were that lifeguards observed were attentive to 
the zone and provided swimmer surveillance, supervisor was active and visible on the beach, 
simulated emergencies were well managed with great examples of teamwork and 
communication, necessary documents were present, and equipment maintained. Staff who 
participated in the audit were Ben Newcomb, Julia Fay, Cara Keleher, and Sabrina Morris.

Beach Training 
Public safety as well as a number of other emergency services from other municipalities will be 
doing their annual dive training on the beach the morning of July 19. The training will simulate 
the response in the event that swimmers or boaters are reported missing near Glencoe Beach. 
Please pass this information along to anyone else who may get inquiries from the public. Please 
let me know if you have any other questions or want additional information.  

Camp is going great. Staff has been challenged by the rainy weather but has come up with 
creative games and crafts to keep them entertained. They have exciting field trips and campouts 
planned for the summer. 

Takiff Maintenance 
We will be closing parts of Takiff Center the week of August 20-August 25 for building 
maintenance and the start of the parking lot construction process. Glencoe Fitness and the 
customer service desk will be the only part of the facility open from August 22- 25. 

Distinguished Agency Accreditation 
We have been gathering and organizing information required for Accreditation review 
preparation for the next meeting with our mentor. 



3

Salary Survey Update/Review 
Carol and I have been in contact with Amanda Wethington, our rep from Korn Ferry/Hay Group, 
to begin the process of the update and review of the District’s hiring/salary ranges originally 
conducted in 2014. 

August Board Meeting 
At this time we see no need for an August Board meeting, however we would like to keep the 
August 7 committee meeting on your calendars. 

Glencoe Beach and Lakefront Advisory Group Meeting 
The next Lakefront Advisory Group meeting is scheduled at 7:00pm on July 24 at Glencoe 
Beach.

Board Vacancy 
As you are aware, Steve Gaines formally resigned from the Board earlier this month due to an 
upcoming meeting. His last meeting was the July10 committee meeting. We posted the vacancy 
and application on our website and social medial. We had several other agencies share the 
announcement. The Park District is accepting applications for the vacancy through Sunday, July 
15 at 5:00pm. After reviewing the applications, the Board will discuss the applicants in closed 
session. 

Freedom of Information Report 
There were three FOIA requests this month. On Tuesday, June 12, the Illinois Policy Institute 
requested employee compensation and accounts payable records from the last three years, which 
was replied to on Wednesday, June 13. On Wednesday, June 13, the Chicago Laborers District 
Council requested Takiff exterior rehab bid results, which was replied to on Friday, June 15. 
Finally, on Thursday, June 21, Deltek requested open contract vendor detail, which was replied 
to on Wednesday, June 27. 

Vacation
I will be out of town for vacation July 19 - July 23. Chris and Bobby will be in the office should 
you have any questions or concerns. I will be out of the state, but will have my cell phone with 
me should I need to be reached for any emergencies. 

Submitted by: 
Lisa Sheppard, CPRP 
Executive Director 



VIII. Action Item A
Approval of Commissioner Service

Resolution No. 885 – Steven H. Gaines

Glencoe Park District
July 2018 Board Meeting



 GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
 RESOLUTION No. 885 

A RESOLUTION HONORING THE 
COMMISSIONER SERVICE OF STEVEN H. GAINES 

WHEREAS, Steven H. Gaines has completed five years of exemplary voluntary 
service as an elected Park Commissioner from 2013-2018, serving as Treasurer from 
2014-2015 and Board President from 2016-2017, as well as serving as chair on the Watts 
Advisory Group and all Board committees. 

WHEREAS, in realization of his consistent commitment of time, energy, and 
expertise to the betterment of services and facilities of the District, and 

WHEREAS, under his exceptional leadership during his term of Presidency, guiding 
staff, commissioners, and the community through a challenging period of park renovation 
and facility improvements resulting in beautiful and safe recreational areas and 
technological improvements contributing to a more efficiently run District. 

WHEREAS, under his watchful eye, he kept tabs on the construction of Berlin Park 
and Park District tennis lessons at Central School, and is a passionate advocate for 
Glencoe Youth Services Teen Center and Watts Ice Rink.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Glencoe Park District Board of 
Commissioners, representing all the residents of the Park District, recognize the meritorious 
service of Steven H. Gaines and record it in the permanent records of the Glencoe Park 
District for all to see. This resolution shall be in full force and in effect immediately upon its 
passage.

Adopted this 17th day of July 2018 

AYES:    
NAYS:
ABSENT:

   

  By:                                                                   
                    Lisa M. Brooks, President 

     Board of Park Commissioners 

   ATTEST: 

                                                                    



         Lisa M. Sheppard, Secretary 
         Board of Park Commissioners 

SEAL
STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 

) SS 
COUNTY OF COOK ) 

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

I, Lisa M. Sheppard,  do hereby certify that I am Secretary of the Board of Park 
Commissioners of the Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois, and as such official, I 
am keeper of the records, ordinances, files and seal of said Park District; and,

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing instrument is a true and correct copy of Resolution 
No. 885: 

A RESOLUTION HONORING THE 
COMMISSIONER SERVICE OF STEVEN H. GAINES 

adopted at a duly called Regular Meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners of the 
Glencoe Park District, held at Glencoe, Illinois, in said District at 7:00 p.m. on the 17th

day of July 2018. 

I DO FURTHER CERTIFY that the deliberations of the Board on the adoption of said 
resolution were conducted openly, that the vote on the adoption of said resolution was 
taken openly, that said meeting was called and held at a specified time and place 
convenient to the public, that notice of said meeting was duly given to all of the news 
media requesting such notice, that said meeting was called and held in strict 
compliance with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act of the State of Illinois, as 
amended, and with the provisions of the Park District Code of the State of Illinois, as 
amended, and that the Board has complied with all of the provisions of said Act and 
said Code and with all of the procedural rules of the Board. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of the 
Glencoe Park District at Glencoe, Illinois this 17th day of July 2018. 

Lisa M. Sheppard, Secretary 
Board of Park Commissioners
Glencoe Park District



VIII. Action Item B
Approval of Resolution No. 886

A Resolution for the Commitment of
$300,000 of the Corporate Fund Balance and
$700,000 of the Recreation Fund Balance for
Future Capital Projects of the Glencoe Park

District

Glencoe Park District
July 2018 Board Meeting



Glencoe Park District / 999 Green Bay Road / Glencoe, IL 60022 / (847) 835-3030 / fax (847) 835-4942 
www.glencoeparkdistrict.com 

To: Board of Park Commissioners  Date: July 10, 2018  

From: Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director and Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance   

SUBJECT: Reserving Portion of Fund Balance for Future Capital  

During the FY2018/19 budget discussions earlier this year, staff proposed that a portion of the 
current Corporate Fund and Recreation Fund fund balance reserves be earmarked for future 
capital (to be identified in the master planning process). As was done in previous years, staff also 
suggested that we await final audited fund balances to make a determination on the exact amount 
to be committed for this purpose. 

Per the District’s current Fund Balance Policy, guidelines for the Corporate Fund and Recreation 
Fund minimum fund balance levels are as follows: 
    
A. General Fund - The General Fund is a major fund and the general operating fund of the Park 

District. It is used to account for administrative, maintenance, parks, and greenhouse, Watts 
Ice, and Beach operations, and all financial resources except those that are accounted for in 
another fund. 

1. Each year a portion of the spendable fund balance will be determined as follows: 

a. Committed – A portion of the fund balance may be committed through formal action 
of the Board of Commissioners either through a resolution or ordinance.

b. Assigned – Fiscal Sustainability. This assigned fund balance will be maintained at a 
minimum level of 50% of annual budgeted expenditures. This will be adjusted 
annually with the adoption of the annual budget and is calculated at a minimum of six 
months (50%) of expenditures not including capital, debt service, and interfund 
transfers. 

c. Unassigned – The unassigned fund balance will be reviewed annually during the 
budget process. Balances in excess of six months (50%) of annual budgeted 
expenditures may be transferred to the Capital Projects Fund to support future capital 
projects.

B. Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the 
proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditure for specified 
purposes other than debt service or capital projects. Financing for most special revenue funds 
is provided by a specific annual property tax levy. In some cases, financing is received from 
admissions, fees, and charges for programs and activities. These proceeds are devoted 
exclusively to the purposes of which the special tax was authorized. Fund balances in special 



Glencoe Park District / 999 Green Bay Road / Glencoe, IL 60022 / (847) 835-3030 / fax (847) 835-4942 
www.glencoeparkdistrict.com 

revenue funds (other than the Recreation Fund) are derived from property taxes and are 
therefore legally restricted to the purpose of the fund.

1. Recreation - This fund is a major fund and is used exclusively for planning, establishing, 
and maintaining recreational programs carried out by the Park District. Financing is 
provided from fees and charges for programs and activities and an annual property tax 
levy.

Each year a portion of the spendable fund balance will be determined as follows: 

i. The restricted fund balance for this fund will be targeted at a minimum level of 50% 
of annual budgeted expenditures. This will be adjusted annually with the adoption of 
the annual budget and is calculated at a minimum of six months (50%) of 
expenditures not including capital, debt service, and interfund transfers. 

ii. Committed – A portion of the fund balance may be committed through formal action 
of the Board of Park Commissioners either through a resolution or ordinance. 

As of February 28, 2018, the audited unassigned fund balance reserve in the Corporate Fund was 
$1,884,865, which represents approximately 66% of current budgeted FY2018/19 annual 
expenditures in the fund. With a proposed $300,000 commitment to future capital, the remaining 
fund balance reserve would remain at just over 55% of annual budgeted expenditures 
($2,849,200).

As of February 28, 2018, the audited fund balance reserve committed for recreation purposes in 
the Recreation Fund was $3,159,242, which represents approximately 71% of current budgeted 
FY2018/19 annual expenditures in the fund. With a proposed $700,000 commitment to future 
capital, the remaining fund balance would remain at 55% of annual budgeted expenditures 
($4,473,188).

Recommendation 
After discussion at the Finance Committee of the Whole meeting and based on the District’s 
current Fund Balance Policy, staff recommends that an amount of $300,000 be committed in the 
Corporate Fund to “Future Capital Projects” AND that an amount of $700,000 be committed in 
the Recreation Fund to “Future Capital Projects”. These amounts keep the Corporate and 
Recreation Funds minimum requirements within the policy to hedge against emergencies/ 
unforeseen expenditures, and yet still allows the District to plan for the future. With these new 
committed amounts, the District will have committed a total of $5.8 million for future capital 
projects from the master plan. (This is in addition to the $1 million donation for Berlin Park.)  

Included is Resolution 886 for approval.



GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION No. 886 

A RESOLUTION FOR THE COMMITMENT OF $300,000 OF THE CORPORATE 
FUND BALANCE AND $700,000 OF THE RECREATION FUND BALANCE
FOR FUTURE CAPITAL PROJECTS OF THE GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the Board of Park Commissioners (the “Board”) of the Glencoe Park 
District, has a Fund Balance Policy which was adopted by the Board in December 2011 
and amended in August 2012 and again in February 2017; 

WHEREAS, the District has more than the 50% required fund balance reserve in 
the Corporate Fund of the District and more than 50% required fund balance reserve in 
the Recreation Fund; and 

WHEREAS, as the District has completed its master plan process which 
identifies future capital needs of the District; 

NOW THEREFORE, Be It and It is Hereby Ordained by the Board of Park 
Commissioners of the Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois that 

Section 1: In the current Fiscal Year 2017/2018, the Park District will 
designate an amount of $300,000 in the Corporate Fund and an additional $700,000 in 
the Recreation Fund as “committed fund balance” to be used specifically for “Future 
Capital Projects of the District” as specifically outlined in the Master Plan. 

Section 2: The Resolution shall be in full force and effect from after its 
adoption as provided by law.

Adopted by roll call vote on July 17, 2018: 

 AYES:      
 NAYS:   
 ABSENT:   
 ABSTAIN:   

              
                        

      Dudley Onderdonk, Treasurer 
      Board of Park Commissioners 

      ATTEST: 

                        

      Lisa M. Sheppard, Secretary 
      Board of Park Commissioners 
[SEAL]



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF COOK ) 

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

I, Lisa M. Sheppard,  do hereby certify that I am Secretary of the Board of Park 
Commissioners of the Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois, and as such official, I 
am keeper of the records, ordinances, files and seal of said Park District; and,

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing instrument is a true and correct copy of 
Resolution No. 886: 

A RESOLUTION FOR THE COMMITMENT OF $300,000 OF THE CORPORATE 
FUND BALANCE AND $700,000 OF THE RECREATION FUND BALANCE
FOR FUTURE CAPITAL PROJECTS OF THE GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

adopted at a duly called Regular Meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners of the 
Glencoe Park District, held at Glencoe, Illinois, in said District at 7:00 p.m. on the 17th

day of July 2018. 

I DO FURTHER CERTIFY that the deliberations of the Board on the adoption of said 
resolution were conducted openly, that the vote on the adoption of said resolution was 
taken openly, that said meeting was called and held at a specified time and place 
convenient to the public, that notice of said meeting was duly given to all of the news 
media requesting such notice, that said meeting was called and held in strict 
compliance with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act of the State of Illinois, as 
amended, and with the provisions of the Park District Code of the State of Illinois, as 
amended, and that the Board has complied with all of the provisions of said Act and 
said Code and with all of the procedural rules of the Board. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of the 
Glencoe Park District at Glencoe, Illinois this 17th day of July 2018. 

Lisa M. Sheppard, Secretary 
Board of Park Commissioners
Glencoe Park District

[SEAL]



VIII. Action Item C
Approval of the Annual Treasurer’s Report

Glencoe Park District
July 2018 Board Meeting

































VIII. Action Item D
Approval to Cancel the August

Regular Board Meeting

No Documents

Glencoe Park District
July 2018 Board Meeting



VIII. Action Item E
Approval of the Energy Contract

Glencoe Park District
July 2018 Board Meeting



Glenc

TO:

FROM:

SUBJEC

DATE: 

The Park
per KWH
per KWH
terms. Th
commod
meeting, 
approval

No. Secti
competit

Recomm
for a 36-m

coe Park Distric

 BOAR

  LISA 
 PARK

CT: IGS E

 7/10/1

k District has
H. After rese
H contract w
his contract h
ity, the Park
this will inc
, the contrac

ion 8 of the 
ive bidding r

mended Mot
month contr

ct / 999 Green

INT

RD OF COM

SHEPPARD
KS & MAIN

ENERGY CO

18

s completed 
earch, we are

with IGS Ene
has no penal

k District wil
clude an exp
ct would be e

Illinois Park
requirement

tion: To app
ract for fixed

 Bay Road / Gl
www.glen

TEROFFIC

MMISSIONE

D, EXECUT
NTENANCE

ONTRACT

the current e
e seeking the
rgy. IGS En
lties for an in
ll be provide
lanation of s
entered into 

k District Co
t.

rove and aut
d per KWH e

lencoe, IL  600
coeparkdistrict

CE MEMOR

ERS 

TIVE DIREC

energy contr
e Board’s ap
nergy has off
ncrease or d

ed with the b
savings from
on July 18, 2

de exempts 

thorize the E
electricity wi

022 / (847) 83
t.com 

RANDUM

CTOR, CHR

ract with Van
pproval to en
fered the Par
decrease in u
best possible 
m the previou

2018.

contracts for

Executive Di
ith IGS Ener

5-3030 / fax (

M

RIS LEINER

nguard for f
nter into a 3-y
rk District m
sage. As the
rate on the d

us contract. P

r utility serv

irector to sig
rgy.

847) 835-4942

R DIRECTOR

fixed rate ene
year fixed ra

more favorabl
e KWH rate i
date of the B
Pending Boa

vices from th

gn an agreem

2

R OF 

ergy
ate
le
is a 

Board
ard

he

ment



VIII. Action Item F
Approval of the Updated Safety Manual

Glencoe Park District
July 2018 Board Meeting




































































































































































































































































































	Agenda
	Consent Agenda Items
	Minutes of June 19, 2018 Finance Committee of the Whole Mtg
	Minutes of June 19, 2018 Regular Board Mtg
	Cooperative Planning, Use, and Maintenance of Facilities and Parks Policy
	Quality and Professionally Trained Staff Policy
	Use of Park District Property and Equipment Policy
	Volunteer Policy
	Voucher List of Bills 6/13/18-7/11/18

	Financial Report
	Business Dept Report
	Recreation & Facilities Dept Report
	Parks & Facilities Maintenance Report
	Marketing & Communications Report
	Minutes of June 29, 2018 Safety & Wellness Committee Mtg
	Executive Director's Report
	Approval of Resolution No. 885 - Commissioner Service of Steven H. Gaines
	Approval of Resolution No. 886 - Committing Funds to Capital Projects
	Approval of Treasurer's Report
	Approval to Cancel the August Regular Board Mtg
	Approval of Energy Contract
	Approval of the Updated Safety Manual

